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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

St. Joseph's Hospital and Nursing School looks down upon the central Montana city
of Lewistown from a hill in the northeast section of the community. The complex was
started in 1906 and grew as additions, alterations and service buildings were
constructed from 1913 to 1953. The complete unit is remarkable in size for a relatively
small rural town. It has been well-maintained and in continuous use until recently.

The central section, constructed of rough-faced sandstone quarried in the area,
was the first unit built. It has two and a half stories above grade and a lower floor
half below grade. This is crowned by a stone balustrade around a second floor roof
deck. Originally the entry was reached by a long flight of stone steps encased by
stone walls; light standards were set at different landings. These steps have been
removed and entry to the hospital is now gained from the other side. The door into
this original entry is set in a large semi-circular head that has a keystone and
voussoir stones. The upper floor has a similar opening onto the roof deck of the
entry porch. Both doors have semi-circular transoms above them.

The windows of this unit and of the later additions are tall, narrow double-hung
units having 1/1 lights. Those of the upper floor have semi-circular heads with a
keystone and voussoir stones. The lower floors have horizontal lintels. These windows

are also wood double-hung units with 1/1 lights and have rectangular transoms above
them.

The units are crowned by a stone parapet wall having blind arcading of rectangular
spaces. The central portion of the original unit rises above the adjoining parapet
walls and bears a plaque containing the name, "St. Joseph's Hospital." Above the
plaque rises a distinctive stone cross of the botonee type.

Of special note are the ornate staircases of hardwood. They have intricately
carved newel posts and turned baluster spindles, and turned wood handrail. In many
instances they have been partially enclosed by paneling to meet fire codes, but the
paneling could be easily removed. The stained woodwork contrasts pleasantly with the
plastered walls.

Additions that began in 1913 and concluded in 1933 extend northwest and southeast
from the original building. The 1913 wing extends south-southeast in the form of an
"L." It also is constructed of native sandstone and has a projecting entry vestibule
(the short leg of the "L'") like the original entry. A cornerstone with the date
"1913" identifies this addition. This wing follows the external treatment of the first
unit. To the east-northeast of this portion there is another wing of the same height,
material and fenestration, constructed in 1926. This addition, connected by a passageway,
designed by W. D. Devine. This 40' x 66' addition contained the maternity ward.

The next addition was the extension of the original building to the north-northwest.
It, too, is constructed of native sandstone and has similar fenestration and material
treatment. This section has a sculptural niche with a semi-circular compound arch
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that houses a statue of St. Joseph. Above the statue niche there is a false-fronted

gable that breaks the continuous stone parapet. The chapel is located in this unit-

of the complex and the windows of the chapel on the southwest facade are two stories

in height, with semi-circular heads that match the heads of the upper floor windows

of the rest of the building. The chapel windows are stained glass. The chapel originally
was two stories in height, but a lowered ceiling was installed later. Restoration ‘
to the original space could be done easily.

In 1935 another sandstone wing matching the rest of the building was added to the
northwest. This building has a basement in addition to the three floors found in the
rest of the complex.

A nursing school building was constructed in 1936 farther to the northwest of the
hospital complex. It is connected to the hospital by a skyway. This 39' x 84' addition
was designed by J. G. Link of Billings. It departs from the design of the previous
units in both material usage and fenestration. It also is three stories in height,
counting partially-above grade basement. The foundation walls are of concrete and the
concrete extends up to the sill line of the first floor windows. The upper walls are
of brick with dressed stone trim.

The nursing school windows are wooden double-hung units, 1/1 lights, without
transoms. All of the windows have flat lintels with stone keystones having flanking
soldier brick. The upper floor windows have dressed stone sills. The central section
is defined by dressed stone quoins and has a low gable pediment extending above the
main roof line. The parapet wall is decoratively treated with brick and stone. Within
the pediment there is an arched statue niche containing a religious statue.

In 1944 the firm of J. G. Link & Co. did some remodeling on the complex and
in 1945 the same firm designed the boiler house that is a separate building located
south of the main building. At this time the kitchen, located in the 1913 addition,
was remodeled. The laundry building, also designed by the same firm, was erected in
1933. It is connected to the northeast wing by a skyway.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Lewistown is a small town located at the exact geographic center of the state
of Montana. It began with a few cabins that were built around a trading post about
1879, and grew steadily thereafter. Two events occurred that made possible the
building of St. Joseph's Hospital. 1In 1898 the first of many stonemasons arrived
from Croatia. The demand for these men's skills had taken them to many parts of the
world, and the rapid growth of towns in Montana brought several of them to Great
Falls. While there three of them heard of great opportunities for stonemasons in
Lewistown, a growing community with an abundance of good building stone. Pete Tuss,
John Plovanich and Peter Drazich moved to Lewistown and quickly found jobs. Word
of their success spread to their home town of Bribir and other Croatian stonemasons
followed them, bringing their families or sending for them as they got settled. By
1915 it is estimated that there were some 100 stonemasons from Croatia (now part of
Yugoslavia) in Lewistown. Pete Tuss opened a stone quarry nearby and most of the
major buildings in Lewistown during that period were built by these craftsmen.

The second contributing event to the foundation of St. Joseph's Hospital was
the arrival in 1903 of a group of nuns from France. They came at the request of the
Right Rev. J. B. Brondel, Catholic Bishop of Montana, and organized their "First House'
in Lewistown. They were members of the Order of the Daughters of Jesus, which had
been founded in Brittany in 1831. Their Lewistown house, their "First House" in the
United States, turned out to be the only place in the United States where they became
established.

The Sisters started to work as soon as they arrived, starting a convent/school
open to all students regardless of their religious affiliation. Sister Philomene
saw the need for a hospital and began soliciting funds for its construction. Her
dream began to materialize on October 10, 1906, when the foundation for the hospital
was begun. Plans had been drawn by Kirkwood Cross. The contract was awarded to
Pete Tuss, who also furnished the stones from his quarry.

The hospital opened October 15, 1908, and was operated by the Daughters of Jesus
and Mother Philomene, Superior. According to a newspaper article at that time,
"The doors of St. Joseph's Hospital are open to receive those of every creed and
color in the time of need, and clergymen of every denomination are always welcome
visitors. No one has ever left the hospital who has not spoken in the highest terms
of the kind treatment received at the hands of these noble women, whose life calling
it is to administer to and comfort the suffered in the hour of pain."
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As Lewistown grew the hospital needed more space, and a second unit was built in
1913. The firm of Link and Haire provided architectural services, and it is believed
that the contractor was John F. Plovanic, nephew of the John Plovanich who was in
the vanguard of stonemason immigrants to the area. The Croatian stonemasons (all
Catholic) donated one day's labor a week without pay in the construction of the first
two units, and possibly for the third, as well.

The third unit, a maternity ward, was built in 1926. This was designed by W. D.
Devine, who may have been associated with Link & Haire at the time. John Plovanic had
the contract for the stone. The tiled floor for this unit was done by Lawrence and
Walter McKelvey from California, and the woodwork was done by John Haugen, a highly
skilled carpenter who had received his training in his native town of Lillehamer,
Norway. He came to Lewistown in 1911.

In 1933 a fourth unit was built, again by John Plovanic. The architect was
J. G. Link, Billings. Plovanic was also awarded the contract for the fifth unit, built
in 1936. 1In addition, the retaining wall around the hospital is built of local
sandstone, cut and placed by John F. Plovanic and completed about 1936-7.

In 1936 the nursing school building was built, this time of brick, rather than
the sandstone used for the other complex. A heating plant and a laundry building,
both built of brick and designed by J. G. Link & Co. complete the group of buildings.
In 1968 St. Joseph's reportedly had 75 beds plus 15 nursing home beds and 15 bassinets.
It was staffed by 8 physicians, 15 Sisters and 150 other employees. It included
St. Joseph's School of Practical Nursing and treated 5,500 patients annually.

St. Joseph's Hospital continued to serve the people of Lewistown and the
surrounding area until 1977 when a new central Montana hospital was built. St.
Joseph's is now vacant but a compatible adaptable use is being planned.
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